58 Exeter

City Council

CUSTOMER FOCUS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date: Thursday 13 November 2025
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter

Members are invited to attend the above meeting.

If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Liz Smith, Democratic
Services Manager on 01392 265425.

Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street.
Membership -

Rees (Chair), Cookson (Deputy Chair), Begley, Fullam, Holland, Hussain, Payne, Pole, Read, Snow
and Wardle

Agenda
1 Apologies
To receive apologies for absence.
2 Minutes (Pages 5 -

14)
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2025.

3 Declarations of Interest

Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer
prior to the day of the meeting.

4 Local Government Act 1972 - Exclusion of Press and Public

It is considered that the Committee would be unlikely to exclude the press and
public during the consideration of any of the items on this agenda but, if it should
wish to do so, then the following resolution should be passed:-



“RESOLVED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the particular item(s) of business
on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in the relevant paragraph(s) of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Act.”

Questions from the Public under Standing Order No. 19

Details of questions should be notified to the Democratic Services Manager via
the democratic.services@exeter.gov.uk email by 10.00am at least three working
days prior to the meeting. For this meeting any questions must be submitted by
10.00am on Monday 10 November 2025.

For details about how to speak at Committee, please click the following link -
https://exeter.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-meetings/public-
speaking-at-meetings/overview/

Questions from Members of the Council under Standing Order No. 20

To receive questions from Members of the Council to the relevant Portfolio
Holders for this Scrutiny Committee. The Portfolio Holders are:

Councillor Bialyk — Leader of the Council

Councillor Asvachin — Housing, Homelessness Prevention & Customer Services
Councillor Vizard — Climate, Ecological Change and Communities

Councillor Williams — Place and City Management

Councillor Wright — Corporate Services and City Centre

Advance questions from Members relating to the Portfolio Holders should be
notified to Democratic Services via democratic.services@exeter.qgov.uk

Medium Term Financial Plan & Budget Timetable 2026/27 (Verbal
Report)

To receive the report of the Strategic Director for Corporate Resources.

Key People Activity Across the Council (Pages 15
- 16)

To receive the report of the Strategic Director — People and Communities

Scrutiny Work Plan and Proposals Received (Pages 17
- 18)

Please see for noting a link to the schedule of future business proposed for the
Council which can be viewed on the Council's web site. This on-line document is
a source for Members to raise issues at Scrutiny on forthcoming Executive
agenda items:

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions - Exeter City Council

Also attached is a draft work plan of future scrutiny items.

Should Members wish to raise issues in respect of future business please notify
Liz Smith in advance of the meeting.


mailto:democratic.services@exeter.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@exeter.gov.uk
https://exeter.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-meetings/forward-plan-of-executive-decisions/

Date of Next Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Customer Focus Scrutiny Committee will be held on Thursday 22
January 2026 at 5.30 pm in the Civic Centre.

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in other formats on
request to Democratic Services on 01392 265425.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

CUSTOMER FOCUS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

25 September 2025

Present:

Councillor Catherine Rees (Chair)

Councillors Cookson, Begley, Fullam, Holland, Hussain, Moore, Parkhouse, Payne, Pole,
Read and Wardle

Apologies:
Councillors Darling and Snow

Also present:
Strategic Director for Place, Strategic Director for People and Communities and

Democratic Services Officer (LS)

In attendance as Portfolio Holder:
Councillors Asvachin, Vizard, Williams,R. and Wright

75 Minutes

The minutes of the meeting of the Customer Focus Scrutiny Committee held on 3
July 2025 were taken as read, approved as correct subject to the addition of missing
apostrophes, Councillor Pole’s name to a comment made and clarification that the
roll out of food waste collections would be complete in 2026 in place of 2026/27.

76 Declarations of Interest
No declarations of interest made be Members.
77 Anti-Social Behaviour in the City Centre

The Chair welcomed students from St James’ School, who gave a presentation
making the following points:

o they felt unsafe and tried to avoid Sidwell St were possible due to alcohol,
drug use, and violence;

o they did not feel that there were any shops on Sidwell St that they would
use;

e the issues could be delt with by tackling anti-social behaviour, investing in the
area, creating events, and working with the individuals living and working near
Sidwell St;

o they felt that the city was not designed for young people and there was little
for them to do;

e alack of food options and affordable activities were also an issue; and

o they thanked the committee for listening to their presentation and hope they
had been able to read the notes that were provided.

During discussion Members made the following points:
o they thanked the students for their thoughtful presentation and report;
o the city was not designed for young people and wanted to know what they
would like on Sidwell St;
e the empty shop spaces could provide spaces for teen hubs, designed and run
by young people; and
e parents would not allow a young person onto Sidwell St;

Page 5



The Chair thanked the students for their presentation, and asked the students if they
would be happy for her to visit the school to follow up by sharing the outcomes of this
meeting.

The Chair invited Councillor Michael Mitchell to set out his proposal for the item
under Standing Order No.45. In doing so he made the following points:
o there had been a lengthy debate on this item previously; and
* he wanted to reassure concerned citizens of the city that this evening’s
scrutiny was a starting point and not an end point.

The Chair invited InExeter and Inspector Devon and Cornwall Police as
representatives of the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) ASB sub-group to give a
presentation.

During their presentation they made the following points:

o the students’ views were consistent with what was heard from businesses in
the city centre;

o there were significant concerns from local businesses about the rising rate of
ASB and that this was going unchecked;

o they wanted Exeter to maintain its reputation of being a safe city;

o they felt that students were far more at risk at home online that they were on
Sidwell Street;

e a key activity was hotspot policing which had been in place since May 2024
and would continue until at least May 2026;

o the City Council’'s Community Safety team carried out daily visible patrols and
they had been working with the police regarding ASB and shop theft;

o the St. Sidwell Centre’s garden was becoming a hotspot for ASB;

o they were working with Exeter City Council and the police to address
encampments;

o the city Council’s CCTV control room was monitored 24/7 and staff were
taking a pro-active approach in identifying perpetrators of crime;

o Exeter City Council had introduced the Need Help signs, which gave people
direct contact to the control centre;

o there had been a campaign to help de-stigmatise people causing ASB led by
the Inspector, which helped people understand that they were a community of
marginalised and vulnerable individuals;

o there had been fewer issues in the Sidwell Centre’s garden following
interventions over the summer;

o there had been an ASB spike in August due to decreased ability to fill hotspot
patrols;

e there were enhanced patrols and focus in nine key areas;

o the Community Safety Team were SIA accredited, first aid trained and were
able to signpost vulnerable individuals to relevant support agencies;

o there was a perception of not feeling safe in the city centre, which existed
partly due to media coverage;

¢ they had met with key partners in the city to discuss those with the highest
demand;

o work needed to be done to ensure there were no barriers to access;

e 30 streetlights had been reported as not working during the University’s
Welcome Week, the repair of these would be a quick-win and would help
people feel safer at night; and

e an update on progress and activity would be given to the Committee in 12
months.

In response to Members’ questions, the following answers were provided:

Page 6



78

e the slide with dispersals within the PSPO area detailed the reasons for
dispersal and whilst most could be classed as ASB some were also criminal
therefore described separately;

o they were grateful for councillor involvement in local meetings;

o it was clear that better communication was needed about the range of
activities being undertaken to tackle ASB;

e people were not always confident on whether to report ASB if they felt it was
low level;

e it had been proven that when dispersed ASB did not move on to other areas,
and ASB in the city centre would not be considered ASB in other areas;

e The Police officer present carried out 1 hour of foot patrol a day and there
was evidence that 20 minutes of police visibility deterred ASB but any longer
did not have further impact;

o there was a backlog in courts and there was finite funding for overtime but it
was centrally government funded; and

¢ needle bins did not encourage drug use.

The Chair stated that Questions from the Public would now be heard before the
remainder of the evidence on Anti-Social Behaviour in the City Centre.

Questions from the Public under Standing Order No. 19

There was one question from the public. The Chair invited Mrs Storrie to read her
question:

“‘Residents in St. David's frequently experience unacceptable levels of anti-social
behaviour related to unauthorised camping, particularly around Bartholomew and
Friernhay cemeteries. This includes littering, abandoned tents, suspected drug-
taking, vomiting and defecation. What measures are being taken by the Council to
support rough sleepers and residents and to prevent anti-social behaviour?”

The Portfolio Holder for Housing, Homelessness Prevention and Customer Services,
Councillor Asvachin responded:

“The Council contracts a range of services for external organisations to support
rough sleepers with the aim of enabling people who are street attached to find and
settle in accommodation. This is funded through government grants and is on top of
the statutory homeless prevention and support services the council funds and
provides directly. The external contracts include an Outreach Service whose role is to
get to know each rough sleeper, ascertain if they have a place to sleep indoors,
(many do, but for a variety of complex reasons stay attached to street sleeping) and if
not, they get alongside to steer people into pathways for accommodation. For people
that do have a place to sleep indoors, the Outreach Service will work with them to
resolve the barriers to indoor sleeping: which can be complex and take time to
resolve. Where the Outreach Service identify rough sleepers who are genuinely
homeless but have no right to statutory services in Exeter, every effort is made to
help relieve their homelessness. This means that the Outreach Service will work with
individuals to explore all avenues to help them find accommodation (which could
mean reconnection to another area), and to help them access wider support that they
may need.

In addition to the Outreach Service the council contracts a range of supported and
temporary accommodation for those faced with homelessness.

The Council, as part of Safer Exeter Community Safety Partnership, is committed to
tackling ASB across the city. During Thursday' evening's Customer Focus Scrutiny

Page 7



79

meeting, Nicola Wheeler, Chair of the ASB sub-group will present a summary of the
steps being taken to tackle ASB within the city centre. The Council investigates
reports of ASB in other parts of the city and will work with relevant agencies to
address concerns.

The Community Safety Team have made several evictions of encampments in the
Bartholomew Street and Catacomb areas in recent weeks. Several people have
either been dispersed from the area or temporarily allowed to remain whilst the
outreach team engages with them for means of support. Both areas are now
regularly patrolled as a result.”

Anti-Social Behaviour in the City Centre

INCLUSIVE EXETER (slides attached) presented their evidence making the following
points:
e were an organisation for people of colour, dealing with some complex issues,
intertwined with vulnerability and facing racism;
there had been a rise in racist incidents following the Brexit vote in 2016;
some politicians had used divisive language rather than supporting;
migrant workers needed more support from their employers;
migrant workers were essential for the economy;
it was important to ensure that staff were trained in inclusivity and that
diversity mirrored the community;
¢ potential solutions included:
prioritise anti-racism;
investigate and act upon racial inequality;
involve people of colour;
More support for migrant workers from employers;
People of colour in higher ranks of statutory organisations;
counteract racism; and
o foster cross-cultural and meaningful understanding; and
¢ Inclusive Exeter ran drop-in sessions, which were collaborative events to
ensure access to diverse communities.

0O O O O O O

EXETER CITY COMMUNITY TRUST (slides attached) presented their evidence
making the following points:
o Exeter City Football Club (ECFC) had received money from the Police
and Crime Commissioner to help tackle youth crime through a mentoring
program (Peer Action Collective PAC);
e PAC was a research programme with young people which was coming to an
end;
e There had been a team of young people aged 16 to 21 who had engaged with
almost 500 young people;
e a national report had been released the previous day;
o there were not enough safe spaces or trusted adults for young people and the
Trust were working with partners to look at building youth provision; and
e one of the best provisions they had visited was at the mosque.

ST PETROCK'S presented their evidence making the following points:
o they had been in Exeter for 30 years and wanted to reinforce that their
work couldn’t be done alone;
e the individuals they supported were scared of ASB and they were often
victims;
e it was important to find alternative spaces that were not alcohol related was
important;

Page 8



it was expensive to run public toilets, was there an alternative that could be in
place for both the homeless and the night-time economy;

a lot of issues that were being discussed were outside of the control of
Exeter City Council and came from austerity;

the supportive housing commissioned by the council was full and there was a
waiting list;

they encouraged good behaviour amongst their clients and aimed to support
them to feel part of the city;

they worked with the police and community safety team where problematic
behaviour is seen; and

those responsible for ASB on Cathedral Green would be excluded from their
services for a time and then a behaviour contract would be implemented.

CO-LAB presented their evidence making the following points:

they reinforced what had already been discussed and confirmed that they
were part

of the ASB sub-group of the Community Safety Partnership;

an important message was that this issue was about health

and public health and it was important to all work together;

ASB was from unmet needs;

the key causes were;

o lack of safe space and activity;

boredom and loneliness;

housing and eviction rates;

substance misuse; and

absence of dual-diagnosis services.

other areas were having success with;

day centres;

restorative justice;

peer support;

consistent dispersal;

integrated support;

multi-agency planning; and

o shared housing plans.

there were spikes in ASB on bank holidays;

there needed to be a reduction in evictions and people needed support to
build skills around obtaining and maintaining tenancy; and
needle bins were successful and did not encourage drug taking.

@)
@)
@)
@)

O O O O O O

WAYTHROUGH presented their evidence making the following points:

they were the commissioned service delivering Together Drug & Alcohol
services for adults in DCC footprint;

there was also Star project in Exeter city centre for those at risk of/or rough
sleeping;

they offered a range of support for alcohol/drug issues such as: psycho-
social groups, 1:1, medical or rehab;

these were some of the most vulnerable and marginalised people in our city;
focus should remain on the behaviour not the person and address the
underlying issues for that person which would support change;

ASB wasn’t only from those with substance misuse issues, housing was an
issue in the city with many unable to find suitable housing for their needs and
a lack of places to gather that made them feel part of the community;
access to substances in the city (spice seen a lot in Exeter) was an issue
with limited out of hours and crisis support or support for underlying

trauma or issues people were masking or trying to deal with;

Page 9



community projects to make people feel valued and run by peers or those
with lived experience could help and these would need to meet people where
they were physically or mentally;

a multi-agency response was key. In Birmingham there had been a project
where shoplifters in the city sat with businesses and were given funding to
address underlying issues which saved money in the long run;

Waythrough had a Community Development Lead who undertook meaningful
activities which run on Saturdays when possible.

The Chair drew the evidence-giving to a close highlighting that a joined-up approach
was clearly needed and it was good to hear about the good work already happening
in the city and asked the committee to focus on what could be done better or

what councillors could do to improve the issue for residents.

Representatives from the CSP ASB sub-group, Inclusive Exeter, ECFC Community
Trust, Co-lab, St Petrock’s and Public Health responded to Members’ questions in
the following terms:

a number of businesses had publicly visible toilets on their premises already
and mapping those businesses who go over and above for the community
was being considered. InExeter looked at the feasibility of funding to

begin this project which would be part of the solution but not the only answer;
Police service unfortunately come when a crime is committed

but visibility was important. Building trust could help deflect those thinking
about perpetrating a crime. Underreporting of crime by people of colour was
an issue. It was understood that funding was an issue for the Police but a
daily discussion with business owners may build trust;

prevention was key and the Community Trust was building diversionary
programmes for young people, understanding the passion of each individual.
Education could be challenging;

relationships were part of prevention and building relationships could help de-
escalate behaviour and this is what the Community Safety Team and City
Centre police team were all about;

ASB maybe exasperated by those who may not have much empathy due to
difficulties of their own. Build empathy by going into schools could be part of
the solution;

the Star team had highlighted how hard it was to get people into treatment but
Exeter was lucky to have STAR team funding. There wasn’t anywhere to stay
for detox from drugs or alcohol in the city;

sharps bins had been piloted previously by ECC in 2019 and perhaps

could be revisited;

there wasn’t enough funding for detox and rehab. Together had already spent
their budget with 6 months of the year remaining and had received extra from
the commissioner;

for rough sleepers or those at risk, getting into residential detox was very
difficult as there no way to secure housing before they go and they were
often deemed too high risk;

the flag was part of cultural identity and people should be proud of it rather
than a representation of division and scapegoating;

people of colour born in the UK felt unsafe and a personal account

of memories of racism was given and the pattern being seen replicated;
diversity needed to be visibly seen across all hierarchy. There was a Hackney
driver representing taxi drivers, who lived in the city

and represented the Afghan community. There was an NHS worker

present, who lived in the city but didn’t feel their voices were heard;

once in accommodation all other challenges were not resolved and there
were more rules to live by and rent to pay;

Page 10



many were detached from their community, without strong family

support and not having positive peers. People met on the street were their
links and essentially their family and they were loyal to each other

which wasn’t always a good thing. Success occurred when they were able

to step away from those social structures but it could take many attempts
before it had an impact;

St Petrock’s modelled good behaviour for example give out lunch and a bin
liner;

many had Adverse Childhood Experiences and lacked a trusted adult in their
life;

communicating the message that those on our streets were our most
vulnerable as often they appeared scary to those who had better life
experiences was key and there was an event being planned for later in the
autumn;

perception of ASB was greater than the reality;

Councillor’'s Vizard and Wright were Member representatives on the ASB sub-
group;

there was a local drug information service where people could report
substances which had perhaps been contaminated. There had been concerns
at the beginning of the year of potential contamination and some batches
were tested and no adulterants were found;

there was not a lot for young people to do but local schools and young
people weren’t aware that they could go to certain youth centres in the
evening or even that they existed. None of the students ECFC Community
Trust had spoken to knew about it and adults

also weren’'t aware. The mosque had a great youth club with excellent adults
and facilities and a lot had been learnt from them;

if young people were not out in cold dark evenings they were at home online
with additional risks; and

there was work to be done across sectors which presented difficulties but also
opportunities and funding drove partners into silos which it was essential to
step outside and work together.

Councillor Fullam proposed, seconded by Councillor Moore a cross-party task and
finish group to look at the overview of ASB work as there had been a summit in 2020,
CSP work since last year and there had been a turnover of ward councillors. He set
out that this was not to replicate the work of the ASB sub-group or to say that
anything was being done wrongly but rather to see what else could be investigated.

The Chair invited the Strategic Director for Place to comment on the proposal and
he made the following points:

all the contributions made were welcomed;

reflecting on what had been heard, there was a task and finish group in the
form of the ASB sub-group of the CSP;

the CSP was a statutory body which was multi-agency and many partners
were in the room;

the CSP was a genuine partnership based on actions which had been
formulated in an action plan;

the CSP had other priorities in addition to ASB, one of which was extremism
and hate crime;

there was evidence still to come from the residents survey and there were
questions about ASB in it;

there was risk of duplication;

he would need to check whether the Health and Wellbeing Board still met;
and

Page 11



e was there a different way in which elected members could contribute as the
energy in the room could be seen.

Councillor Fullam as proposer wanted to see a different, wider view from elected
Members’ and to try to facilitate other changes. He said there was great passion that
something could be achieved and challenges had been laid down by other
professionals. He finished by saying that a task and finish group was a tool which
the committee had and it could have an overview and apply learning to the context of
citizens of Exeter.

The committee took a break at 1956 and reconvened at 2005.

During debate Members’ made the following points in support of the proposal:

e local authorities had a power to promote wellbeing in their area and the
evidence heard showed a lack of wellbeing;

e there was a strategic gap as there was a health and wellbeing board
but nothing for Exeter;

e there were gaps in the Council’s policies and strategies and mapping of those
would be good and an example was given of objecting to a gambling
licence where no policy on community wellbeing meant no challenge to the
licence; and

e 38 streetlights not working in the city centre suggested that statutory agencies
were not working together as they should be and the CSP was great but not
as open and transparent as a task and finish group would be.

During debate Members’ made the following points against the proposal:

o ASB was a very important and emotive issue and a lot had been learnt;

o the way forward was the CSP ASB sub group which had officers and two
members of the Executive on it as representatives of the city council
and Members’ could work with them if they felt their voices weren’t being
heard;

e there maybe duplication which would not be desirable; and

o there was a Wellbeing Exeter Strategy and health and wellbeing were key
priorities within the new Corporate Plan.

In response to questions from Members’, The Strategic Director for Place informed
the committee that he chaired the CSP Executive Group and he was aware of a
resolution which had been passed stating that minutes would be published of all CSP
meetings, papers, presentations, from the executive, management group and all 5
sub-groups. If requested, regular reports would be brought to Customer Focus
Scrutiny Committee but the next step would be for officers to provide a report with
evidence and data on ASB as well as responses from the residents survey. He also
added that public health was an upper-tier responsibility, but the city council chose to
make this a priority.

The Chair stated that she believed that the item didn’t come as opposition but as a
desire to look at the causes of ASB and situation within the proposer’s ward in the
city centre. She believed that all wanted the same thing, all residents to feel safe and
to thrive and not to undermine the fantastic joined up approach of the CSP but to
enhance it and address gaps which arose, including information about silo working
forced by funding and she believed that officer time could be saved in the future.

In summing up Councillor Fullam stated that this was not a partisan issue and there

was no criticism of the Executive held within his proposal but there was value which
could be added to the work underway.

Page 12



80

81

Following a vote the motion was NOT CARRIED.

Councillor Moore proposed, seconded by Councillor Read that the concerns of
inclusive Exeter be presented to the police and DCC and formally to

ECC regarding how we better work with our diverse communities and following a
unanimous vote, was CARRIED.

Portfolio Holder Update - Councillor Wright (Deputy Leader & Portfolio Holder
for Corporate Services, Community Safety and City Centre)

The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services, Community Safety, and City Centre,
Deputy Leader, Councillor Wright, presented her update making the following
points:

e Councillors would not be invited to the ASB sub-group as it would not be
appropriate at present. This was chaired by InExeter;

she would like another all Councillor briefing from the CSP;

the Exeter Safety Charter would be coming to SMB;

Exeter was a City of Sanctuary;

ASB could be reduced by decreasing the number of late off-sales licenses;

there had been discussion surrounding the installation of bleed kits, following

campaigning by Mia Hawker, whose friend was stabbed and died last year in

Bristol;

e the Police were using their own approved translators which had caused
issues with waiting times for taking witness reports;

o ECFC’s idea of a youth panel was excellent and she would be discussing
opportunities for the council with them;

o there would be investigation into the cost for providing and emptying portable
toilets, as there had been reports of people defecating on the streets during
the day; and

o darkness on the High Street needed to be addressed, as well as ensuring
trees that obscure CCTV cameras are cut back appropriately.

During discussion, Members made the following comments:
o they appreciated the way Councillor Wright worked in a cross-party manner;
e could licensing be asked to review their policy on sales of alcohol;
o it was difficult for the Licensing Committee to argue or reject an application
when there was no response from authorities; and
e some applications were dealt with under delegated powers but Members
were able to look through these.

Councillor Moore proposed, and Councillor Read seconded, that the committee
recommend to Licensing that their policies be reviewed with regard to out of hours
off-sales of alcohol. Following a vote, this was CARRIED.

RESOLVED that the Customer Focus Scrutiny Committee recommends that the
Licensing Committee review their policies with regard to out of hours off-sales of
alcohol.

Portfolio Holder Update - Councillor Vizard (Portfolio Holder for Climate,
Ecological Change & Communities)

The Portfolio Holder for Climate, Ecological Change, and Communities, Councillor
Vizard, presented his update which was taken as read.

The Portfolio Holder responded to Members’ questions in the following terms:

Page 13



82

83

e each department was coming up with plans, ideas, and mitigations to work
towards net zero and he would respond outside the meeting with regard to
what had been done differently as a result of carbon literacy training and the
roadmap;

¢ Inclusive Exeter provided an important contribution and he spoke with them
intermittently but would aim to provide a bridge between communities and the
council as he had heard this evening that people did not feel seen and
heard;

o he asked that Clir Moore put her question to him via email about disposing of
assets as it may fall under the portfolio of the Leader; and

o the oversight of the city grants also sat with the ward Councillors and the
community builders. The city grants budget was approximately one third
spent, and they received a healthy number of applications each round.

Questions from Members of the Council under Standing Order No. 20

In accordance with Standing Order No. 20 no questions were submitted in advance
of the meeting.

Councillor Read asked the Portfolio Holder for City Management, whether a
response had been received from the Environment Agency regarding the levels of
algae in the canal and in a supplementary question whether there was a named
contact. Councillor Williams was in attendance and responded that a response had
not been received and that the contact was a general one and not a named person.

Councillor Read asked the Deputy Leader, who was in attendance whether the
correction in the Scrutiny Annual Report had been made and where the updated
version could be found? The Democratic Services Officer responded that this would
be followed up.

Councillor Read asked if there had been a response from government with regard to
the information on box shifting sent as a result of the recommendation made by this
committee to the Executive. It was agreed that a response would be provided outside
the meeting.

Scrutiny Work Plan and Proposals Received

The Chair proposed, to the approval of the Committee, that:

e The item on refuse bins be moved the 19 March 2026;

e The item on Homelessness and the Portfolio Holder for Housing,
Homelessness Prevention and Support Services Update be moved to 22
January 2026 to allow enough time for the Budget item in November; and

o Key People Activity Across the Council and Portfolio Holder for Arts, Culture
and Tourism be moved from January 2026 to 13 November 2025.

Following a vote the draft Scrutiny Work Plan, as amended, was AGREED.

The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 9.00 pm

Chair

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 8

REPORT TO CUSTOMER FOCUS / STRATEGIC SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting: 13 November 2025

Report of: Jo Yelland, Strategic Director, People and Communities

Title: People Activity Across the Council : Human Resources Operations

Is this a Key Decision?

Scrutiny is a non-decision-making committee

Is this an Executive or Council Function?

Not Applicable

1. Whatis the report about?

This report provides a comparative overview of HR operations at Exeter City Council
before and after the independent HR review conducted in March 2024. It outlines the
structural, procedural, and cultural changes implemented to improve HR effectiveness,
workforce planning, employee relations, and service delivery. It also highlights ongoing
challenges and future priorities.

2. Recommendations:

That the committee notes the contents of the report and the considerable progress made
in delivering the HR Improvement Plan.

3. Reasons for the recommendation:

To provide assurance to the committee that the HR function has undergone significant
transformation, with clear progress against the recommendations of the independent
review and a strategic plan in place to continue improvements.

4. What are the resource implications including non-financial resources

- Investment in HR systems (e.g. iTrent, Bl Dashboard(s), SharePoint People Hub)
- Commissioning of leadership development programmes

- Procurement of a new Occupational Health provider

- Recruitment of senior Health & Safety role

- Staff time and project management resources to deliver the HR Improvement Plan

5. What are the legal aspects?

All HR policies and practices are being reviewed to ensure legal compliance. A full tender
exercise is underway for Occupational Health services to ensure contractual and
regulatory alignment.

6. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)

The report is for information only

Page 15



7.

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:

No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. However,
digital transformation initiatives (e.g. automation, SharePoint, Bl dashboards) may reduce
paper use and travel requirements.

Report details:

See full report attached: Human Resources Operations at Exeter City Council — Pre
and Post HR Review Assessment

How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan?

Contributes to Corporate Priority: Leading a Well-Run Council:

Supports strategic workforce planning

- Enhances employee experience and wellbeing

- Promotes inclusive and effective leadership

- Aligns HR operations with organisational priorities
- Strengthens data-driven decision-making

10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced?

- Risk of implementation delays mitigated through project governance and timelines
- Risk of non-compliance addressed through policy reviews and legal oversight
- Risk of poor engagement mitigated through staff surveys and communication plans

11. Are there any other options?

The Council could have chosen to maintain the status quo, but this would not have
addressed the issues identified in the independent review or supported strategic
transformation.

Director: Jo Yelland

Author: Lydia Wilson — Head of Service, HR, Workforce Planning & OD

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)

Background papers used in compiling this report:-

HR Improvement Plan
EDI Project Plan

ECC BI Dashboard Data
Staff Survey Results

Contact for enquires:

Democratic Services (Committees)
Room 2.35

01392 265275

Page 16



Updated 17/09/2025

WORK PLAN FOR CUSTOMER FOCUS SCRUTINY ITEMS 2024/25

Working Draft for November 2025

Customer Focus
Scrutiny
Committee

Item

Director

Portfolio Holder

Origin of Business

Status

13 November 2025 Quarter 2 Budget Scrutiny Strategic Director Leader Scrutiny proposal — ClIr | Not available at this time —
for Corporate (Clir Bialyk) Parkhouse Strategic Director
Resources (DH) suggests moving to
January meeting
13 November 2025 Key People Activity Across Strategic Director — | Corporate Scrutiny proposal Clir

the Council

Palmer

our Passivhaus Council
Homes*

People and
Communities (JY)

Homelessness
Prevention and
Support Services

o People and Services & City
D Communities (JY) | Centre (Deputy
% Leader, Clir
AR Wright)
~J13 November 2025 Medium Term Financial Plan | Strategic Director Corporate
for Corporate Services & City
Resources Centre (Deputy
Leader, CliIr
Wright)
22 January 2026 Portfolio Holder's Report Strategic Director Portfolio Holder
(ClIr Asvachin) for People and for Housing,
Communities Homelessness
Prevention &
Support Services
22 January 2026 Tenants Energy Review of Strategic Director — | Housing, Scrutiny proposal Clir

Atkinson

6 Wal epuaby



Updated 17/09/2025

(ClIr Asvachin)

22 January 2026

Six-monthly update on
Homelessness Strategy

Strategic Director —
People and
Communities (JY)

Housing,
Homelessness
Prevention and
Support Services
(ClIr Asvachin)

Proposed by Councillor
Denning — half yearly
report

19 March 2026

Portfolio Holder’s Report
(Clir Williams R.)

Strategic Director
for Operations (AP)

Portfolio Holder
for City
Management

13 November 2025

Portfolio Holder's Report
(ClIr Foale)

Strategic Director
for Place (IC)

Portfolio Holder
for Arts, Culture &
Tourism

19 March 2026

9,

Update on Street Cleansing
and Bin Collection —
Recycling and Food Waste
Collection

Head of Operations
(CC)

City Management
(Clir R Williams)

Yearly report

319 March 2026

Eton Walk Refuse bin —
Petition

Strategic Director
for Operations (AP)

City Management
(ClIr R Williams)

Petition

Deferred from September
2025

To be timetabled on 28 July 2025 subject to proforma being submitted [see October 3 minutes]:
¢ Budget proposal from Clir Moore




	Agenda
	Customer Focus Scrutiny Committee
	Agenda


	2 Minutes
	Customer Focus Scrutiny Committee
	25 September 2025
	Present:
	Apologies:
	Also present:
	In attendance as Portfolio Holder:



	8 Key People Activity Across the Council
	REPORT TO Customer Focus / Strategic Scrutiny Committee
	Is this a Key Decision?
	Is this an Executive or Council Function?
	1.	What is the report about?
	2.	Recommendations:
	3.	Reasons for the recommendation:
	4.	What are the resource implications including non-financial resources
	5.	What are the legal aspects?
	6.	Equality Act 2010 (The Act)
	7.	Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
	8.	Report details:
	9.	How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan?
	10.	What risks are there and how can they be reduced?
	11.	Are there any other options?
	Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)


	9 Scrutiny Work Plan and Proposals Received



